ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 22, 2015
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW' S): DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY
- HEARD

OVERVI EW S): DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

GARY FOLCGER, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Departnent of

Public Safety (DPS).

TERRY VRABEC, Deputy Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety (DPS).

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a Power Point presentation during the
overvi ew of the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS).

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 22, 2015



KELLY HOWELL, Director

Di vision of Adm nistrative Services

Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered a question regarding grants during
t he overview of the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS).

KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer

Central Ofice

Division of Retirenent & Benefits (DRB)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview on
t he Departnent of Adm nistration (DOL).

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding gender
identity and licensing during the overview of the Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA).

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a PowerPoint presentation during
the overview on the Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:04:55 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representatives Keller, Kreiss-
Tonkins, Stutes, Talerico, Vazquez, and Lynn were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Gruenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

CHAIR LYNN introduced the <conmttee secretary from House
Records, and then he asked each nenber of the commttee to
i ntroduce hinf herself. He related the story of his gavel, given
to himby his maternal grandnother.

OVERVI EWS): DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY

8:09:16 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 22, 2015



CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was the
overview by the Departnent of Public Safety.

8:09: 39 AM

GARY FOLCER, Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS),
presented an overview of DPS. He listed the follow ng nottos on
whi ch he stands: "I'n honor there's hope"; and "The only thing
necessary for evil to triunph is for good nen to do nothing."
In response to Chair Lynn, Conmm ssioner Folger said he grew up
in Cantwell, Alaska, went to high school in Heely and Pal ner,
and has served approximately 32 years as an Al aska State Trooper
- all of that time in the area of wildlife. He indicated that

he enjoys his career and serving Al aska. He said next year
would be the departnent's seventy-fifth anniversary; t he
departnment is one of the oldest in the state. He said the

budget for DPS is just under 2.5 percent of the entire state
budget, and the departnent receives about one quarter of one
percent of capital inprovenent nonies. He relayed that DPS
enpl oys approxi mately 885 full-tine enployees and 926 part-tine
enpl oyees, many of whom are enpl oyed in the sumer.

8:12:14 AM

TERRY VRABEC, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Public Safety
(DPS), stated that he has 30 years' experience in |aw
enforcenment, having worked in the Kenai Peninsula, for the Gty
of Fairbanks, and for the University of Alaska, including tine
as the chief of police. He indicated that a fornmer comm ssioner
was responsible for his involvenrent with the Al aska Police
St andards Council, and former Comm ssioner Joe Masters appointed
hi m as deputy conm ssi oner.

8:13: 07 AM

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEC directed attention to a hardcopy of a
Power Poi nt presentation [included in the commttee packet]. He
turned to page 2 of the PowerPoint, which states that the
m ssion of DPS is "to ensure public safety and enforce fish and
wildlife laws.” The departnment conprises urban and rural units
across the state and offers the follow ng core services: rural
| aw enforcenent, donmestic violence and sexual assault prograns,
statewide public safety prograns, resource protection, and
hi ghway safety. He directed attention to an organizational
chart on page 3 of the PowerPoint, which shows that the
conmi ssi oner oversees the Division of Admnistrative Services,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 22, 2015



the Division of Alaska State Troopers, and the Division of
Al aska WIldlife Troopers. He related that his job as deputy
comm ssioner includes overseeing the Dvision of Statew de
Services, the Division of Fire and Life Safety, the Crinme Lab
and [the Public Safety Acadeny] in Sitka.

8:14:48 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked for further information regarding the Public
Saf ety Acadeny.

8:15: 07 AM

COW SSI ONER FOLGER said when the econony "tanked" in the md-
1980s, the departnment did not hire many troopers. He rel ayed
that there were about 40 trainees at the acadeny in 1990. He
stated that "in this next year" there are 61 troopers that can
retire, and there will be 51 state troopers that can retire the
foll owi ng year. He said DPS is at a crossroads and that "the
big elephant in the room is the budget." The departnent is
trying to determne how many applicants to pick up in its next
training at the acadeny. He stated that the scary issue is that
out of the 61 that can retire, nost of them are in managenent
positions.

CHAI R LYNN enphasi zed his concern and the inportance of DPS to
sur vi val

8:16: 55 AM

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEC said the Public Safety Acadeny not
only trains troopers, but also trains local officers, airport
police, wuniversity police, and park rangers. He acknow edged
that Representative Kreiss-Tonkins had delivered the |ast
graduati on speech.

8:17:57 AM

COMWM SSIONER  FOLGER answered a series of questions from
Representative Vazquez. He estimated that perhaps 30 of the
af orenenti oned 61 troopers would retire [as soon as eligible].
He said there are approximtely 378 troopers currently, and that
nunber has not changed much over the last 20 years. He said the
troopers are taken care of in terns of vehicle and equipnent
needs. He indicated that the needs of the departnent depend on
many considerations. He explained that a ot of dollars go into
special training in areas such as child forensic interview and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 22, 2015



vehi cl e accident reconstruction. He indicated that that sort of
special training is sonmetinmes expected during court proceedi ngs.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ stated her desire to see a breakdown of
the departnent's personnel needs. She inparted that her
experience as a prosecuting attorney has shown troopers behaving
professionally, and she said she knows the department has not
really increased the troops out in the front |ine.

8:20: 50 AM

COM SSI ONER FOLGER responded to a series of questions from
Representati ve G uenberg. He said the television reality show,
Al aska State Troopers, initially increased the nunber of people
interested in becomng a trooper; however, the decision was nade
to cancel the show because it had "run its course." He said the
departnment nodel is simlar to that of Oregon; however, Al aska
is unique in its geography. He said DPS worked closely wth
Washi ngton and Col orado regarding a marijuana initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his desire to speak wth
Comm ssioner Folger further in order to "not have to reinvent
t he wheel . "

8:23:37 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed his pleasure in having Representative
G uenberg back on the commttee.

8:24: 02 AM

DEPUTY COW SSIONER VRABEK, in response to Representative
Stutes, confirmed that Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSOs)
receive their training fromthe Public Safety Acadeny in Sitka.
He mentioned a bill that passed in 2014 that would allow VPSOs
to be arnmed, and said the departnent is working with the first
group that would be transitioning into that capacity. He
estimated that currently there are 80 VPSGOs, and said there is
constant effort in recruiting people to becone VPSGCs.

8:25:22 AM
DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK offered an exanple of a need that
required specific troopers to handle a special assignnment. He

said it was called the crimnal suppression unit, and it was in
response to an increase in property crimes in the Anchorage

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 22, 2015



val | ey. He said any special unit that is fornmed will require
extra resources.

8:26: 50 AM

COWM SSI ONER FOLGER, in response to Chair Lynn, confirnmed that
DPS has a special intelligence unit that partners with the U S
Department of Honmeland Security and other federal agencies to
address potential terrorism in Al aska. He said it is alnbst a
stand-al one unit within the Division of A aska State Troopers.

CHAIR LYNN expressed his desire for Alaska to strengthen its
def ense against terrorism

8:28:13 AM

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEC indicated that the special wunit is
made up of nenbers of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI),
the Anchorage Police Departnent, and the U S. Departnent of
Honel and Security. He suggested commttee nenbers may like to
nmeet sone of the nmenbers of the special unit.

8:28: 36 AM

COWM SSI ONER FOLCER added that the room used by the special unit
is "wiretap-proof,” and he expressed his willingness to show it
to nenbers of the conmittee.

8:29:09 AM

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK said the departnment holds a high
standard for its troopers and has a rigid screening and training

process. He said although nmany people may be interested in
becom ng a trooper, sone of those people change their m nds when
they discover what is involved in training for the job. In

response to Chair Lynn, he said the departnent does not have a
reserve program He explained that it would be difficult to put
sonmeone through that kind of training to then be in reserve
stat us.

8:30:45 AM

COMWM SSIONER  FOLGER addressed page 6 of the PowerPoint,
regarding the Division of Alaska WIdlife Troopers, which

includes a Marine Section and an Aircraft Section. He said
there are about 40 vessels larger than 20 feet in length that
control Alaska' s waterways. He said fisheries for crab and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 22, 2015



salnon allow the departnment to patrol past the three-nmile limt
out to the 200-mle limt. He noted there are approximtely 43
aircraft used within the departnent, the bulk of which are super
cubs. O her aircraft used include five helicopters, two King
Air craft, and about six Cessna-type aircraft. He stated that
those are necessary patrol vehicles for a state that is largely
wi t hout road access.

8:32:34 AM
COMWM SSIONER  FOLCGER, in response to Representative Kreiss-

Tonkins, confirnmed that DPS does provide air support to the
O fice of the Governor.

8:33:12 AM

DEPUTY COWMM SSI ONER VABREK directed attention to page 7 of the
Power Point, which |lists information about the Division of
St atew de Servi ces. He said the division houses many behind-
t he-scenes staff inportant to the success of the departnent as
wel | as other departnments across the state. Included within the

division is the Crimnal Records & ldentification Bureau, which
houses the Al aska Public Safety Information Network - used daily
to gather information and a link to the national system Al so
found within the bureau is the Al aska Automated Fingerprint
| dentification System wuniformcrine reporting, the sex offender
regi stry, concealed handgun permtting, and conputer support.
In response to Chair Lynn, he said current information avail able

from a person's driver's Ilicense includes not only the
information on the license, any warrants for arrest, and any
ot her past issues, but also information on the national system
about a person's activity in any other state. He said the

information is confidential and secure; a trooper has to have a
reason to use the system He said depending on connectivity,
the response from the system can be available in less than a
m nut e. He reported that the bureau processed over 62,000
fingerprint cards and over 70,000 crimnal history records.

8. 37:04 AM
DEPUTY COW SSIONER VRABEK, in response to Representative
Krei ss-Tonkins, offered his understanding that the fee for a

crimnal background check is $25.

COM SSI ONER FOLGER, in response to a followup question, said
he does not know how nmany $25 fees were collected. He said, for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 22, 2015



exanpl e, school bus drivers nust have a crimnal history records
search perforned.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK said there are a considerabl e nunber
of requests nmade because nmany small business enployers require
background checks. In response to Representative Kreiss-
Tonkins, he said he could find out the exact nunber, and added
he thinks the departnent is trying to cover its costs rather
than make a profit.

8:38: 59 AM

COWM SSI ONER FOLGER added that the automated finger print system
is "pretty amazi ng technol ogy."

8:39: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ commented that the crimnal background
checks are essential for many enpl oyees in the health sector.

8:39: 39 AM

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK directed attention to page 8 of the
Power Poi nt, which addresses the Division of Fire and Life
Safety. He said the state fire marshal is Kelly Nicolello, who
oversees deputy fire nmarshals throughout the state. The
di vision conducts training statew de, develops building codes,
and does plan reviews. He remarked that there are a lot of
agencies and fire departnments in Al aska. He stated that the
di vi si on sonet i nes sends i nvestigators to assi st in
i nvestigations of fires.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK turned to page 9 of the PowerPoint,
whi ch addresses the "Scientific Crinme Detection Lab." He said
the lab receives evidence from every police departnent in the
state.

8:41: 14 AM
CHAI R LYNN recognized there was controversy about the cost of
running a crine |ab, but enphasized that he has always been in

support of the |ab.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK responded that sone departnents are
not able to cover the cost, so DPS tries to help out when it
can. He stated that in fiscal year 2014 (FY 14), the |ab had

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 22, 2015



recei ved over 4,500 requests and was able to conplete over 4,200
of them

8:42:32 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked if deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) is collected if
soneone is convicted or [charged] and whether the |ab has a DNA
ibrary bank.

COW SSI ONER  FOLGER answered in the affirmative. He said
depending on the circunstance or crinme, that DNA information is
added into a national database called the Conbined DNA |ndex
System (CODI S). He said nost of the DNA information is taken
after conviction, although there are sone paranmeters that would
set it ahead of conviction, for exanple, when CODIS solved the
Bonni e Crai g case.

8:43:43 AM

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK offered his understanding that in FY
14, 735 requests [related to DNA] were made, and 632 of those
requests were conpl et ed.

8:44:17 AM

COM SSIONER FOLGER, in response to Chair Lynn, said it is
difficult to think of an entity with which DPS does not partner.

CHAI R LYNN nentioned an incident regarding the [Al aska] Nati onal
Guard, and said it seens there may be a breakdown in
communi cati on between the mlitary and | ocal |aw enforcenent.

COW SSI ONER FOLCER replied that there certainly is a breakdown
i n communication, and DPS is addressing the issue.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER VRABEK said sonme of Alaska's nultiple
mlitary installations may fall within a rmunicipality;
therefore, it may not always be the troopers that investigate.

8:45:38 AM

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER VRABEK directed attention to page 10, which
addresses the Division of Admnistrative Services (DAS). The
di vision oversees several areas, including finance, budget,

human resources, and grants nanagenent.

8:46: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 22, 2015



DEPUTY COW SSIONER VRABEK, in response to Representative
Gruenberg, said DPS has full-time staff |looking for grant
possibilities. He said there are many factors in qualifying for
grants. Further, he noted one caveat is that the departnent may
receive nmoney through a grant, but there is no guarantee as to
the Iifetinme of that financial resource.

8.49:13 AM

KELLY HOWELL, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS), in response to Representative
Gruenberg, said the division has three staff assigned to grant
managenent . She said they nmake use of several systens for
nmonitoring federal grants to find out when they are avail able
One of those systens is called "grants.gov." She said the

people in charge of grants sign up for notifications, which can
be tailored to the type of grant desired. She said DPS is the
state adm nistrating agency for many justice grants, such as the

justice assistance grant. She said, "W retain a certain
portion of that, as well as sub-grant out to local |[|aw
enforcenment agencies and other agencies for crimnal justice
purposes.” The Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault

(CDVSA) is the designated agency to receive federal grants
related to donestic violence, sexual assault, and other victins'
services grants.

8:51:17 AM

M5. HOWAEL, in response to Representative Keller, said the
departnment was asked to make cut-backs, and it considered that
request an opportunity to increase efficiency, nmaximze the
strengths of its enployees, consolidate services where possible,
and focus its finite resources on its highest priority, which is

to provide public safety to the state. She said consideration
is being made of vacant positions to determ ne whether they are
critical. The departnment is looking at certain services it

provides that may not be directly related to its mssion of
providing public safety and determ ne whether it is the right
department for the service or another departnent or non-profit

agency could take it over. She said, "Everything is on the
table in ternms of trying to identify ... efficiencies ...."
8:54:13 AM

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK returned to the PowerPoint, to page
11, and listed the three councils overseen by DPS: t he Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 22, 2015



Fire Standards Council (AFSC), the Alaska Police Standards
Council (APSC), and CDVSA. He said AFSC is a newer council and
trains and certifies fire fighters and energency nedica
technicians (EMIs) across the state. The APSC oversees the
certification of about 3,000 police and corrections officers.
The CDVSA has done incredible work in the state with shelters
and grants.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK noted that there are [pie charts on

pages 12-15 of the PowerPoint]. He offered to answer further
guesti ons.
8:56: 02 AM
CHAI R LYNN expressed the willingness of the cormittee to assist

"the conmm ssion."”
8:56: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG expressed interested in finding out
whet her the departnment is enploying the use of nore efficient
vehicles for enmergency response whenever full-size vehicles
traditionally used are not necessary.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK said he would check with the fire
mar shal for information

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nenti oned Googl e gl asses - gl asses that
are connected to a conputer so that a doctor at a hospital can

see what is going on in an anbul ance. He suggested it could
save lives in renote areas where an anbul ance cannot nake it to
a hospital quickly. He enphasized the need for innovation

because of Al aska's small popul ation, |ack of trained personnel
and vast geography.

8:59:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nentioned that the |egislature had passed
Senate Bill 64. He then referred to [the "Transition Team
Conference Report"] and indicated that the transition team had
commented on crimnal justice reform and brought up the idea of
resuscitating the Controll ed Substances Advisory Conm ssion.

8:59:48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 22, 2015



DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER VRABEK acknow edged that he had also read
that, but said the departnent had not yet spent tinme discussing
t he issue.

9: 00: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned a device that is wused to
al l ow anbul ances and fire trucks to pass through intersections
quickly, and said it was installed in Anchorage a few years ago.
He offered his understanding that police vehicles could not use
t he devi ce because they nove too fast. He said he would like to
hear nore about this topic.

COWM SSI ONER FOLGER remarked that al nost every day there is an

article in the paper nmentioning a state trooper. He opined that
DPS is an inportant departnent, and he stated that he |oves
serving the people of Al aska. He recognized the financial
chal l enges faced by the departnent and expressed his wllingness

to work together [with the legislature to find solutions].
9:01: 05 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from9:01 a.m to 9:05 a. m

OVERVI EW' S) : DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON

9:05: 27 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was the
overview fromthe Departnment of Adm nistration

9: 06: 03 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that a previous nenber of the |egislature had
retired and lost his retirenment benefits because of "an error on
sonebody's part soneplace.” He said he would |like to know what
can be done to prevent that from happening in the future.

9: 06: 48 AM

KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer, Central Ofice, Division of
Retirement & Benefits (DRB), Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA),
prefaced her response by expl ai ni ng t hat because of
confidentiality statutes, she could not discuss the specifics of
the case to which Chair Lynn referred; however, she offered to
speak about the issue in general terns. She stated, "The
pension plans are set up - barring what happened in 2000 that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 22, 2015



led us to an unfunded liability - to be self-sustaining." She
reviewed that benefits are funded by contributions to the system
by the enployer and enployee, and the investnent income on the
fund is what pays for "the lifetine of the nenber." When
benefits are paid, she explained, DRB draws first from the
menber's contribution account, and then from the enployer's
i nvest ment i ncone. She said because the system is designed to
be self-sustaining, it has provisions in it for what happens
when there are errors in the record.

M5. LEA said AS 39.35.520-.522 covers the Public Enployees
Retirement System (PERS) and requires the division to recover
any overpaynment of benefits that occurs because of an error in
the record in service reporting, salary reporting, or the
conputation of benefits. In response to Chair Lynn, she
clarified that those errors could be ones nade by the retiree,
by the enployer that reports the information to the division, or
errors that are "made in calculation.” She said the division
has a fiduciary responsibility, as well as the statutory
requi renent, to reclaimbenefits when they have been overpai d.

M5. LEA said there are three steps that a nenber can take to
have redress from an overpaynent. There is a waiver provision
at the division level contained within AS 39.35.520(b). She
recalled three of the four criteria that the nmenber nust neet in
order to qualify for the waiver: He/ she had no way of know ng
the benefit was being paid in error; he/she had not supplied the
division with erroneous information; the overpaynent had been

paid for nore than two years. |If the person does not neet that
criteria, there is a second review that is done at the
commi ssioner's |evel. She said two of the elenents are the

same, and they are regarding the nenber not knowing the
over paynment was being made and not having supplied the division

with false information. In addition, when the case has been
brought to the comm ssioner's review, the person nust be able to
prove financial hardship. If no waiver is granted under those
two provisions, the nenber is given appeal rights and can
present his/her case. | f the decision does not go in the favor
of the nmenber, he/she wll be awarded $1 in benefit if the

repaynent is nore than what the benefit is, and that is so the
menber' s nedi cal benefit can conti nue.

CHAI R LYNN surm sed that a sudden change to $1 a nonth from for
exanpl e, $1,500 a nonth would constitute a financial hardship.

M5. LEA answered yes, depending on what the person's other
assets are.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 22, 2015



CHAIR LYNN opined that this is a real problem and asked if a
sol ution exists.

M5. LEA replied that the provisions are in place to keep the
system whol e. If the state does not collect overpaynent of
benefits, then it would be adding to the unfunded liability.
She reiterated that there are three levels at which a nenber can
present his/her case for waiver, and the overpaynent cannot be
wai ved if he/she does not neet that criteria. She stated that
the independent arbitrator is the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings, which is where the nenber can present information
showi ng financial hardship. She said the division is charged
wth ensuring that its nenbers receive every penny they have
earned and accrued, but not one penny nore, because the system
must be kept sound for the good of everyone in it.

9:13:41 AM

M5. LEA, in response to Chair Lynn, said cases of overpaynment
"to this extent”™ do not occur frequently; however, she said
there were a rash of cases several years ago that occurred
because of a benefit called the "level income option,” in which
t he nmenber receives the bulk of his/her benefit prior to turning
sixty five, at which point, when Social Security begins to pay,

the PERS pension is reduced. She said a conputer conversion
resulted in the division mssing that conversion date and
overpaying those involved for mnmany years. When the division

realized what had happened, it had to go back and adjust the
benefits of all those who were overpaid for several years. She

enphasi zed that such an occurrence is unusual. The division
goes through the three-step process, at which tine the nenbers
who were overpaid had their redress. She offered her

understanding that at the time this occurred, cases went before
the Public Enployee Retirenent Board, and it was determ ned that
a nenber had reason to know that his/her retirement would be
reduced, because he/she had been sent a letter to that effect,
but had not notified the division when the paynents renained the
sane.

M5. LEA said there are one or two overpaynent cases that the
division addresses every nonth, and they typically are
over paynment of Alaska cost of Iliving allowance (COLA), where
people |l eave the state for nore than 90 days and do not tell the
di vi si on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 22, 2015



CHAIR LYNN asked if there is any way to cover the state wth
insurance in cases where it was the state's responsibility for
havi ng made the overpaynent and the nenber was not aware that it
was happeni ng.

9:17: 30 AM
IVS. LEA answered that it wwuld be rare for the sane
circunstances to cone up again where there was a substantia

over paynment .

CHAIR LYNN remarked that even though it may be rare, the effect
on just one person is marked.

M5. LEA said the division nakes a great effort to help people

who find thenselves in such a situation obtain a waiver. She
said under statute, overpaynents can be paid back in two ways:
a lunp sum or through the lifetine of a person's benefit. | t
may be possible for the division, through the Ofice of
Adm ni strative Hearings, to accept a lesser anount; in sone
cases, the division will allow the nmenber to nake paynents so

that at sone point his/her benefit is restored.

CHAIR LYNN opined that this topic was too conplicated to
continue during the present overview, however, he said he would
like to neet with the division to fix the issue.

9:19:46 AM

M5. LEA, in response to Representative Vazquez, said the
af orenenti oned appeal process can be wused to address the
col l ection process, as well as to determ ne the anount owed. In
response to a followup question, she added that also during an
appeal, the nenber can challenge a decision that was nade

regardi ng the situation not being a financial hardship.
9:20: 57 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration (DOA), answered a series of
guestions from Chair Lynn regarding gender identity as it
relates to the job of the DW in issuing driver's and
identification |icenses. She said a person comng in to the DW
to apply for a driver's license or identification for the first
time would need to provide the DW wth his/her |egal nane,
place of birth, sex, and nmailing address, along with show ng
docunentation such as a birth certificate or passport in order

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 22, 2015



to acquire that identification. She said it has happened that a
person whose identification showed one sex has relayed another
sex to the DWw. If that happens, the DW would need
docunentation from a healthcare provider who had changed the
person's gender, and the person could provide an anended birth
certificate or a new U S. passport that would show a new gender
and the DW woul d honor that.

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was one particular situation that
brought this issue to |ight.

M5. ERI CKSON responded as foll ows:

Back in 2009, a case involved a male-to-female
transgendered person who lived as a fenmale, and her
passport and nedical certificate identified her as
femal e, and she applied for an Al aska |icense, and her

designati on was nal e. And later, ... DW discovered
that when she changed her gender, we didn't have
docunentation of that change. So, we sent a

cancel lation of her license and asked that she provide
docunentation that said that she had had surgery. And
it was determined that that was a violation of her
privacy and that DW didn't have any regulation
promul gated that would allow us to do that. And so,
the court ordered that we pronulgate regulations to
al | ow soneone to change their gender.

M5. ERICKSON said the regulation was changed within 180 days.
In response to Chair Lynn, she said that was in 2012.

CHAIR LYNN asked, "Is any kind of |legislation appropriate on
this subject in your mnd, M. Erickson?"

M5. ERI CKSON opi ned that there is no need for |egislation.
9:25:45 AM

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Admi nistration
(D), began a PowerPoint presentation. He directed attention
to slide 2 of the PowerPoint, which illustrates the diversity of
the departnent, and he pointed out that about half of DOA is
focused on the public, while the other half serves state

agenci es. Comm ssioner Fisher said he started as comm ssioner
on Monday, and he expressed his hope that he would be able to
name deputies within the next week. In response to Chair Lynn

he said he would be happy to conme back to discuss the subject

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 22, 2015



brought up by the chair during the overview of DPS, regarding
[the nmethod by which the state recoups overpaynents to
retirees].

COW SSI ONER FI SHER said slide 3 shows that DOA serves virtually
all of Al aska. He directed attention to slide 4, which lists
the follow ng DOA services to the public: the Division of Mtor
Vehicles; the Division of Retirement and Benefits (DRB), which
manages not only the health plan and benefits for retirees, but
also the health plan for active nenbers; the Public Defender
Agency (PDA) and the Ofice of Public Advocacy (OPA), both of
which are constitutionally nandated to provide public services
and have heavy casel oads; the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssioner
(OPOC); the Alaska G I and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOCGCO),
whi ch does licensing on behalf of the state for the exploration
of oil, gas, and geothermal resources; the Alaska Public
Broadcasting Comm ssion (APBC), which admnisters grants for
public radio and television; the Ofice of Adnmnistrative
Hearings, which is an appeal agency staffed by admnistrative
|aw judges; and the Violent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB),
whi ch adm ni sters sonme conpensation to victins of violent crine.

COMM SSIONER FISHER |isted the following DOA services to state
agenci es, as shown on slide 5: the Division of Finance (DOF),
which provides financial, auditing, payroll, and reporting
functions; the Division of CGeneral Services (DGS), which focuses
primarily on managenent of the state's buildings, as well as its
procurenent and purchasing process; the Division of Risk
Managenent (DRM), which nanages any clains that occur; the
Division of Personnel and Labor Relations (DOPLR), which takes
care of human resources and |abor relations; Enterprise
Technol ogy Services (ETS), which is the centralized portion of
the IT departnent; and the Division of Admi nistrative Services
(DAS), which takes care of budgeting.

9: 30: 39 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER brought attention to slide 6, which lists
core initiatives he identified as being largely driven by the
i mpact on the budget. The first initiative is personnel costs,
whi ch include health care, wages, and productivity. He rel ated
that in the past, he has had sone success in increasing
productivity, and he stated his intent to take a | eadership role
in that function across the adm nistration.

9:31: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 22, 2015



COM SSIONER FISHER, in response to Chair Lynn, gave his
personal history. He said he was an attorney at law, with a
focus on nergers and acquisitions and contract law, primarily in
the tel ecomruni cations industry. He relayed that in sonme of his
former positions he focused on initiatives to inprove the
delivery of services at a reduced cost, and he stated that he is
| ooking forward to doing the sane in the Departnent of
Adm ni stration

9:34: 09 AM

COM SSI ONER FI SHER returned to slide 6 of the PowerPoint. He
said the unfunded liability will continue to be a priority, and
he said he thinks there are ways to reduce health care costs
further. He stated that the State of Al aska needs to continue
to drive down the cost of procurenent. Currently the cost of
procurenent is $280 mllion. He said the departnment would like
to inprove information technology (IT), as well as the
managenent of space utilization. He said he would touch again

on the aforenentioned points later wwthin the overview.
9:34: 57 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER directed attention to slide 7, which shows
in a graph how the cost of health insurance benefit credit has
risen over the last ten years. He offered his understanding
that the prior admnistration was focused on this issue and was
able to reduce the cost in the last [couple] years.

CHAIR LYNN noted that there was a considerable junp in costs in
FY 11, and he questioned what the cause may have been.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER responded that there was a change in the
third-party admnistrator at that tine.

9: 35: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked how Alaska's health care
costs conpare to the national baseline cost.

COW SSI ONER  FI SHER answered that he does not have that
information, but the reduction in costs was driven by a couple
primary factors. One is that Al aska expanded its network, thus
gai ning access to a better network of doctors at a |ower cost.
He estimated that change has generated approximately $50,000 in
savi ngs. Not wi t hstandi ng that, Al aska continues to have fairly
expensi ve health care. He said the adm nistration is exam ning

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 22, 2015



techniques that it could enploy as one of the larger health care
providers to bring nore savings to the state.

9:37: 06 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER noved on to slide 8, which lists bargaining
contracts through DOPLR. Under ["Contracts That Expire on June
30, 2014"], he noted that the Mrine Engineers' Beneficial
Associ ation (MEBA) and Masters, Mates and Pilots (MW) have not
been finalized; therefore they would still exist. From t hose
contracts listed [under "Contracts That Expire on June 30,
2015"], he noted that Public Enployees, Local 71 (LTC) and the
Teachers' Education Association of M. Edgecunbe (TEAME) are two
contracts that DOA wll be negotiating in the com ng year. He
said the departnment has a tentative agreenent with the Al aska
Correctional Oficers Association. He said the contracts wll
be inportant in the process of |ooking for savings and nmanagi ng
| abor chal | enges.

9:38:12 AM

COM SSIONER FI SHER said slide 9 shows a projected "bubble"
increase in the nunber of retirees over the next 70 years, which
he explained is driven primarily by the nunber of retirees that
will be "hitting the system"™ He said the graph enphasizes the
ur gent need to reduce costs as quickly as possible.
Conmi ssioner Fisher directed attention to slide 10, and he
reviewed that the |egislature had approved a | unp-sum $3 billion
paynent into the Public Enployees Retirenent System (PERS) and
the Teachers Retirenment System (TRS) to help drive down the
unfunded liability. Currently, he said, $2 billion of that has
been paid, and he offered his understanding that the last $1
billion would be paid shortly. He said the paynent has changed
the trajectory in terns of the anount of contribution the state
is required to nmnake, approximately $250,000 a year; however,
that nunber is still "dramatic and substantial."

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER showed slide 11, regarding nulti-departnent
contracts awarded by the Division of General Services (DGS). He
expl ained that the contracts save the state alnmost $60 mllion

He turned to slide 12, which shows the Integrated Resource
Information System (IRIS) that allows DOA to manage purchasing
across the state to validate and ensure it is conplying with the
|arge contracts and getting the savings it expects. He
indicated that RIS would be incorporated into the D vision of
Finance & Procurenent by the sumer of 2015, and into Hunman
Resources and Payroll about a year |ater.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 22, 2015



9:41: 00 AM

COW SSIONER  FISHER directed attention to slide 13, which
outlines Enterprise Technology Services (ETS) and Information
Technology (IT) cost issues. He explained that currently a
portion of the IT function is centralized in ETS. For exanpl e,
the administration spends approximately $218 mllion on IT
functions, and about $38 mllion of that is within ETS. The
departnment is currently working through proposals - sone of them
fromthe legislature - to determne how to inprove |IT services.
He said that will come from both strengthening the
centralization function while leaving some flexibility wthin
the organi zations to ensure that their services are needed.

9:42: 29 AM
COM SSIONER FISHER, in response to Representative Kreiss-

Tonkins, said he wuld be taking a leading role in the
determ nati on, because he has worked around technol ogy enough to

have an understanding of the issues surrounding it. Further, he
said he intends to "leverage capabilities”™ throughout the
or gani zati on. He stated his intent to bring together nmany
people to corroborate and cone up with a valuable solution. In

response to a followup question, he confirnmed that he has given
thought to a centralized function, and the departnent is
considering whether it would be appropriate to have a cabinet-
| evel position to serve that function. He stated that he thinks
a centralization function is necessary in order to provide a
framework and reduce costs; however, he said there would be
areas where the expertise should remain in certain departnents
that know their own needs. He said DOA is under obligation to
make a recommendation to the legislature, and he estimted that
it would have the information ready within a nonth

9:46: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ brought up two issues: First, she noted
t hat when she worked for the comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Health and Social Services (DHSS), a survey conducted by IT
showed that the Division of Senior & Disability Services used 32
dat abases. She suggested that it nmay be fruitful for DOA to
i nvestigate and consolidate in that area. Second, she nentioned
the Medicaid systemand said it would be interesting to find out
why two contractors have failed in the |ast 15 years.

9:48: 27 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 22, 2015



COM SSIONER FISHER, in response to Representative Vazquez,
confirmed that the "FY 13" shown on slide 11 was a typographical
error that should instead read "FY 14." In response to another
guestion related to slide 7, he said the State of Al aska has
done better than the national average in terns of increases;
however, "as an absolute dollar level," the State of Alaska is
still higher than the Lower 48. He said he does not know how
the State of Alaska's increases or absolute nunbers conpare to
other insurers in the state, but said he would ook into that.
He said personal experience with other enployers in Al aska
indicates that "these nunbers actually |ook pretty good - for
Al aska." He said the State of Alaska has a problem with the
cost of health care [benefits], and that is one area where
i nprovenent can be made.

COM SSIONER FISHER, in response to Representative Vazquez,
acknow edged that security is a huge issue; it is challenging to
bal ance the need for security with the need for access and
flexibility. He said DOA is currently performng a review, and
he does not have any reconmendations that vary greatly from what
i s al ready being done.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked if there is any way DOA could
coordinate with other state governments in terns of security
practices.

COMM SSI NER FI SHER responded that that is a good suggestion.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ stated that although she realizes there
needs to be a central operation, she has always appreciated the
avai lability of |IT assistance that could arrive within five
m nutes to solve a problem

9:53: 19 AM
COWM SSI ONER FI SHER concurred. He gave an exanple of having
shared datacenters as a way to save noney and have a nore secure

system

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ indicated that IT staff, 1in general,
serve the state well.

9:55:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER remarked that the database struggle has
been going on for a long tine. He said the concern over

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 22, 2015



security has slowed down the centralization of databases. He
said the Constitution of the State of Al aska guarantees the
right to privacy, and it is the job of the legislature to
determ ne how that right will be upheld in statute.

9:56:41 AM
COMWM SSIONER  FISHER directed attention to slide 14 of the

Power Poi nt, which addresses universal space standards (USS) that
DGS has been adopting in order to reduce the footprint of each

wor ker . He reported that the departnment is "putting a little
pause" on its efforts, because it has received "a fair anmount of
pushback from the represented workforce.” He indicated that DOA

wants to engage those people to gain their input because it does
not want to spend noney on a new system and di scover it does not
wor k. He said one of the strategic objectives of DOA is to be
nmore efficient in howit nmanages and | eases its spaces.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER turned to slide 15, which shows the results
of the surveys DQOA regularly conducts to determ ne the custoner
service ratings of various elenents of service it renders within
certain divisions.

CHAIR LYNN expressed his appreciation for the overview, and
asked that Comm ssioner Fisher follow up on the concerns
expressed by the commttee.

9:59:18 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:59
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 22, 2015



